
   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 

CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – OCTOBER 21, 2014 

 

The Richardson City Plan Commission met on October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in the 

Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Barry Hand, Chairman 

  Gerald Bright, Vice Chair 

  Janet DePuy, Commissioner   

  Eron Linn, Commissioner 

  Randy Roland, Commissioner   

  Stephen Springs, Alternate 

  Bill Ferrell, Alternate 

   

MEMBERS ABSENT: Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 

  Thomas Maxwell, Commissioner 

   

CITY STAFF PRESENT: Michael Spicer, Director – Development Services 

  Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs – Planning  

  Susan Smith, Assistant Director – Dev Svcs – Dev. & Eng. 

  Israel Roberts, Development Review Manager 

  Chris Shacklett, Sr. Planner 

  Mohamed Bireima, Planning Technician 

 

BRIEFING SESSION 
 

Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff regarding 

staff reports, agenda items and a work session.  No action was taken. 

 

MINUTES 

 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular business meeting of October 9, 2014. 
 

Vice Chair Bright and Commissioner DePuy requested minor changes to Items 8, 9, and 10. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the minutes as corrected; second by 

Commissioner DePuy.  Motion passed 7-0. 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission and will be 

enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 

desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate consideration. 

 

2. Common Area Landscape Plan – Villas of Nantucket (companion to Item 5):  A request for 

approval of a common area landscape plan for a 13-lot, single family subdivision with one (1) 

common area lot.  The 1.61-acre site is located at the northeast corner of Nantucket Drive and Old 

Campbell Road. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  2 
 

 

3. Site and Landscape Plans – Project Black Flag (companion to Item 6): A request for approval 

of a revised site plan and landscape plan to construct a one-story, 129,180 square foot data center. 

The 14.93-acre site is located at 1402 E. Lookout Drive; the southeast corner of Lookout Drive and 

Plano Road. 

 

4. Site and Landscape Plans – CityLine Market Pad Site (companion to Item 7):  A request for 

approval of site and landscape plans for the development of two (2) free-standing restaurant 

buildings totaling approximately 10,000 square feet.  The 1.91-acre site is located at 1425 E. 

Renner Road, the north side of Renner Road, east of Plano Road. 

 

Motion: Commissioner DePuy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; 

second by Commissioner Springs.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

5. Replat – Villas of Nantucket Addition and Sweet Addition, Lot 1A, Block A (companion to 

Item 2):  Consider and take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lot 1, Block A 

of the Sweet Addition and 1.66-acres of unplatted property to create a 13-lot, single-family 

subdivision with one (1) common area lot and one (1) commercial lot.  The 2.88-acre site is located 

at the northeast corner of Nantucket Drive and Old Campbell Road 

 

Mr. Roberts stated the applicant was requesting the replat to accommodate the development of a 

13-lot, single-family subdivision with one common area lot, and to accurately reflect the common 

property line between the proposed subdivision and the existing adult day care center on the 

adjacent lot to the north. 

 

Mr. Roberts noted that the replat would dedicate and abandon necessary easement for the proposed 

subdivision and complied with the City’s subdivision regulations. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to approve Item 5 as presented; second by Vice 

Chair Bright.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

6. Replat – Spring Creek Farm South Addition, Lots 1A and 3 (companion to Item 3). Consider 

and take necessary action on a replat of Spring Creek Farm South Lot 1 to create two (2) lots. The 

23.01-acre site is located at 1402 E. Lookout Drive (Lot 1A) and 1510 E. Lookout Drive (Lot 3); 

the southeast corner of Lookout Drive and Plano Road. 

 

Ms. Smith advised the purpose of the replat was to subdivide the property into two (2) lots and 

dedicate easements for the development of Lot 1A, which is on the western portion of the property. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  3 
 

 

 

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve Item 6 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Linn.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

7. Replat – Galatyn Park North Addition, Lot 3A, Block B (companion to Item 4):  Consider and 

take necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Lots 3 and 4, Block B of Galatyn Park 

North Addition into one (1) lot. The 1.91-acre site is located at 1425 E. Renner Road; on the north 

side of Renner Road, east of Plano Road. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the purpose of the replat was to combine two (2) existing lots into one lot to 

accommodate the development of two (2), 5,000 square foot restaurant buildings to be located on 

the north side of Renner Road, east of Plano Road.  He added that the replat complied with the 

City’s subdivision regulations. 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments were received in favor or opposed, and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to approve Item 7 as presented; second by 

Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

Note:  The Commission changed the order of the agenda with Item 9 heard as the first zoning case and 

Item 11 as the last item on the agenda. 

 

8. Zoning File 14-31 – Adult Day Care:  Consider and take necessary action on a request for 

approval of a Special Permit for an adult day care facility.  The property is currently zoned C-M 

Commercial and is located at 327 W. Spring Valley Road; on the south side of Spring Valley Road, 

east of Central Expressway 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting a Special Permit for an adult day care facility 

located within the TVE Wellness Center at 327 W. Spring Valley Road.  He added the day care 

would operate on a daily basis from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m., which would occur when the wellness 

center was not being used for martial arts or yoga classes. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said the goal of Special Permit was to provide the senior population with an 

opportunity to participate in active and recreational programs (exercise, mediation, reading, music, 

and crafts).  In addition, the applicant would offer the option of a pre-packaged or box lunches 

from an outside vendor.   

 

Mr. Shacklett explained that the property currently has 54 parking spaces for both the dental office 

and the wellness center, and the applicant felt the parking was adequate because most of those 

participating in the adult day care would be dropped off by family members or utilize public 

transportation.  He added the applicant has confirmed that no medical care would be provided as 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  4 
 

 

the facility was intended more for seniors who are active and looking for an exercise or leisure 

class. 

 

After visiting the site, Mr. Shacklett acknowledged that staff had noticed some areas (landscaping, 

parking, etc.) were not in compliance with the City’s codes; however, one of the special conditions 

suggested by staff would require the property to come into compliance with City code prior to 

receiving a Certificate of Occupancy (CO). 

 

In closing his presentation, Shacklett reviewed the special conditions and stated that one piece of 

correspondence in opposition had been received. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if the deed restrictions mentioned in the letter of opposition were 

under the purview of the Commission or was it a private civil matter. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that staff had not been supplied with a copy of the deed restrictions, but 

confirmed the restrictions were a private agreement entered into by the property owners. 

 

With no other questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Ms. Reeva Wilkinson, Operations Manager, TVE Wellness Center, 327 W. Spring Valley Road, 

Richardson, Texas, stated the center was attempting to add a wellness program for seniors to their 

business to fill the time between 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. when no martial arts classes are taking 

place.  She added that the motivation behind the program was to add exercise classes for senior 

citizens and to give them a place to go during the day. 

 

Regarding the traffic issue mentioned in the letter of opposition, Ms. Wilkinson stated that most 

participants would either be dropped off or arrive via public transportation and the parking would 

not be impacted.  In addition, she said if there were any deed restrictions they would abide by the 

terms of those restrictions. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said that the wellness center had applied for a license through the State of Texas 

and the approval was pending the outcome of the current zoning case. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if many seniors had requested an exercise program and would 

qualified staff be on hand to help. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said they had received many inquiries about starting an exercise program and 

confirmed that qualified, licensed staff would be on hand to work with the seniors. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked which state agency would license and regulate the proposed exercise 

programs. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson replied the Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) would 

license and screen the instructors for the exercise programs. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  5 
 

 

Chairman Hand wanted to know if the applicant would be contracting with local retirement villages 

to bring their residents over by buses. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said they had not explored that avenue as yet, but it was a possibility. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked how many program participants were anticipated and what would be 

the cost. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson replied they were not expecting more than 50 or 60 participants and the cost for the 

program would be regulated by DADS.  

 

With no other comments received in favor, Chairman Hand called for comments in opposition. 

 

Mr. Mark A. Nacol, property owner of 990 S. Sherman Street, Richardson, Texas, said he agreed 

with Mr. Springs that deed restrictions would not fall under the purview of the Commission and 

should not be considered when a decision was made on the zoning request.  However, he did think 

the deed restrictions were evidence of the property owner’s intent to maintain quality businesses 

and felt the request to add an adult day care center did not conform to those restrictions. 

 

Mr. Nacol stated he did not have a problem when the applicant changed their building from brick 

to stone, or the dentist office that was now a tenant, but he was opposed to the additional traffic 

that would be generated by an adult day care in an already congested area.  He asked the 

Commission to deny the request. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if there was any opposition to the martial arts studio that is presently 

leasing the space. 

 

Mr. Nacol replied that he did not have a problem with that use. 

 

Mr. Charles Stevenson, property owner of 329 W. Spring Valley Road, Richardson, Texas, said he 

agreed with Mr. Nacol that an adult day care center was not the best use of the property.  He 

suggested that if the Commission was inclined to approve the Special Permit that the permit would 

have a time limit of a year to allow for the permit to be recalled and reviewed.   

 

In rebuttal Ms. Wilkinson said she did not think there would be a problem with traffic from 10:00 

a.m. to 3:00 p.m. because of the vacancy rate of the other buildings in the area.  She reiterated that 

the proposed day care would not be for those with medical issues, but simply a place where seniors 

could go to exercise and participate in other life enhancing programs. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson pointed out that the owner of the martial arts studio had worked hard to bring his 

property into compliance with the City’s ordinances and had conveyed an access easement for a 

driveway allowing traffic and overflow parking from Chili’s restaurant to use the area. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked how the day care would screen the participants to exclude those with 

medical issues. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  6 
 

 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said DADS required a nurse to be present during exercise classes in case of an 

emergency, but the center would not provide medical services or dispense medicine so any senior 

who had those requirements would not be allowed to participate in the programs.   

 

Commissioner Roland asked for clarification of the activities taking place outside the 10:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m. timeframe for the senior programs, and also wanted to know the level of participation for 

those activities. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said from 6:00 a.m. to 10:00 a.m. there are exercise classes and the maximum 

number of participants is 35 to 55, which would be approximately the same amount of participants 

for the senior programs. 

 

Commissioner Linn asked if the name of the proposed center had been approved by the state or 

was it part of the application that was awaiting the outcome of the zoning case. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson replied the name of the center would be TVE Wellness Center for Seniors and the 

name was part of the current application with DADS that is waiting for the City’s approval of the 

special use permit. 

 

Vice Chair Bright wanted to know if the building capacity that was mentioned of 120 was for the 

whole building or the proposed use.  He also wanted to know if the on-site parking could handle 

the maximum number of participants.  

 

Mr. Shacklett said the maximum occupancy of the whole building (6,000 square feet) was 120, 

which was based on the City’s Building Codes (size of space, sprinklers, ingress/egress), but the 

parking requirements were based on the square footage and use of the lease space.   He added that a 

martial arts studio required one parking space for every 100 square feet of activity space or 23 

parking spaces based on 2,244 square feet of activity area, which it did provide. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked about a comment made in the work session concerning what the applicant 

would like to do and currently could do without changing the zoning. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that if the applicant had wanted to use their lease space from 10:00 a.m. to 

3:00 p.m. for senior exercise and meditation classes, those two uses would fall under the definition 

of martial arts and a Special Permit would not be required.  However, the applicant also wanted to 

provide reading, music, crafts, computer training, and provide lunch, which staff determined fell 

outside the definition of a martial arts studio and a Special Permit would be required. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if staff knew the zoning for the adult day care facility on Nantucket Drive. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said it had a similar type of zoning to the current location. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if the applicant had requested a senior or wellness center would those 

uses be permitted.  He also wanted to know what the zoning was for the City’s senior center. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  7 
 

 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that senior or wellness centers were not specifically defined and staff would 

have to further question the applicant to determine the proposed use.  In addition, the City’s senior 

center is considered a public building and therefore allowed in any zoning district. 

 

Mr. Chavez added that the State of Texas also concluded the proposed use fell under the definition 

of an adult day care center and, just like the City, if a particular use was not defined, staff would 

look a little further into the use and suggest a Special Permit if appropriate. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if the adult day care on Nantucket Drive functioned in the same 

manner as the proposed center. 

 

Mr. Shacklett said he was not sure, but thought the applicant may have an answer. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson replied that she had visited the facility on Nantucket Drive and it was a health care 

center that was for individuals who were not able to take care of themselves during the day and 

their family members would drop them off to be supervised. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell pointed out that several areas on the applicant’s site were not in compliance 

with the site plan and asked if the applicant was agreeable to making those changes. 

 

Ms. Wilkinson said she would make all the changes. 

 

With no other comments received in favor or in opposition, Chairman Hand closed the public 

hearing. 

 

Commissioner Springs said he thought the application was more a question of semantics as 

opposed to a practical problem and helping seniors find active things to do in a building that was 

already set up for exercise was a use that made sense.  He also did not think there would be 

problems with the traffic, but did emphasize that bringing the site into compliance was a good 

thing. 

 

Vice Chair Bright said the question for him was whether or not the proposed use was appropriate 

for the site and, as staff had stated, the proposed use would not be much different from the current 

activities.  He added that he did not think the use would generate more traffic and, as long as the 

site was brought into compliance with the site plan, he would vote in favor of the item. 

 

Commissioner DePuy suggested the applicant may have been better served by simply adding 

senior exercise and enrichment classes to their facility, and said she understood the concerns of 

neighbors regarding traffic, but pointed out that the morning and evening hours for the martial arts 

studio was not generating an adverse amount of traffic.   Ms. DePuy added that her biggest concern 

was to make sure qualified staff was in place to work with the seniors. 

 

Chairman Hand said he was opposed to repurposing a restaurant building when it first came before 

the Commission a few years ago, and now with the concerns expressed by the adjacent business 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  8 
 

 

owners that the proposed use did not fit in with the vision for the area, he felt he could not support 

the item. 

 

Commissioner Springs stated the reason the item was before the Commission was the fact the State 

declared the only definition to fit the proposed use was adult day care, but he felt the use was more 

in line with wellness, which was a permitted use under the current zoning. 

 

Commissioner Linn asked if the Special Permit could be tied to the applicant so the use specified in 

the Special Permit would not transfer if the property sold to a different owner.   

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that the Special Permit could be tied to the owner, which would mean if the 

next owner wanted to open a martial arts studio they could, but not the adult day care. 

 

Mr. Linn said he would prefer the Special Permit being tied to the owner, which he felt could help 

protect adjacent property owners. 

 

Commissioner DePuy and Vice Chair Bright said they agreed with Mr. Linn’s statement about 

linking the Special Permit to the applicant. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked for clarification on special condition number 4 – “Prior to the 

issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the adult day care facility, the approved site plan shall be 

updated to reflect the existing site conditions.”  

 

Mr. Shacklett suggested some changes to that special condition which would state: “Prior to the 

issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy, the approved site plan and landscape plan shall be 

updated to reflect the existing site conditions, or the site shall be modified to comply with the site 

and landscape plan.”  He added that if the zoning case was approved and the applicant came in for 

a Certificate of Occupancy, staff would either tell them that whatever had already been done was in 

compliance and the plans would be modified to match the changes, or what was done did not 

comply and the property would have to be changed to match the site and landscape plans. 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Item 8 with special 

conditions 1, 2 and 3 as presented; the modification of special condition 4 as stated by 

staff; and the Special Permit would be limited to the present property owner; second by 

Commissioner Linn.  Motion approved 6-1 with Chairman Hand voting in opposition.   

 

9. Zoning File 14-32 – Turkish Community Center:  Consider and take necessary action on a 

request to revoke Ordinance 2390-A, a Special Permit for the Young Women’s Christian 

Association (YWCA), and approval of a request for a Special Permit for a community center to 

include assembly uses and temporary lodging.  The property is currently zoned O-M Office and is 

located at 1416 E. Collins Boulevard; the south side of Collins Boulevard, east of Plano Road. 

 

Mr. Bireima advised that the applicant was requesting to continue the application to the November 

4, 2014, City Plan Commission meeting to allow him time to discuss the details of the project with 

the adjacent neighborhood. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  9 
 

 

 

With no questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Steve Pointer, Robert Boyd Architects, 4004 Belt Line Road, Addison, Texas, stated the 

request for a continuance was based on the applicant’s desire to communicate with the adjacent 

neighborhood at an open house planned for the following week. 

 

No other comments were received in favor of the item and Chairman Hand called for comments in 

opposition. 

 

Ms. Lydia Luckett, 1935 Forestwood Drive, Richardson, Texas, said she was not opposed to the 

use of the first floor as office space in the proposed expansion, but had concerns with the use of the 

second floor as housing.  She added that with the proposed size of the guest quarters, there was a 

concern about how many occupants would be in each room, as well as the expected guests of the 

center not having to register or show proper identification. 

 

Ms. Luckett concluded her comments by saying she was also concerned about the impact on 

property values if the proposed request was approved.   

 

Ms. Lily Wang, 1410 Somerset Place, Richardson, Texas, stated she felt the area was mostly 

residential and any expansion to the existing buildings would not be good for the area.   

 

Mr. Pointer clarified that the property was presently zoned O-M Office and was adjacent to a 

residential area.  He added that there seemed to be some misunderstanding among the neighbors 

and that was the reason the applicant was proposing an open house to afford the neighborhood the 

opportunity to visit and get answers to any of their questions. 

 

Mr. Vepa Rejepov, Outreach Director for the Turkish Community Center, 1416 E. Collins 

Boulevard, Richardson, Texas, reported there would be an open house at the community center at 

6:30 p.m. on October 28, 2014.  He added that most of the guests of the proposed housing would 

be students staying on a temporary basis and there would not be any extra cars or people coming 

into the facility unless the community grows. 

 

Ms. Luckett commented that she felt any guests of the center should use one of the local hotels as 

opposed to staying at the center. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to continue the Public Hearing to the November 

4, 2014, City Plan Commission meeting; second by Commissioner DePuy.  Motion 

approved 7-0. 

 

10. Zoning File 14-33 – Starbucks Drive-thru:  Consider and take necessary action on a request to 

revoke Ordinance 4063, a Special Permit for a restaurant with drive-thru service, and for approval 

of a change in zoning from C-M Commercial to PD Planned Development to allow a restaurant 

with drive-thru service.  The property is currently zoned C-M Commercial and is located at 501 W. 

Belt Line Road; the southwest corner of Belt Line Road and Central Expressway. 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  10 
 

 

 

Mr. Shacklett advised the applicant was requesting to rezone the property at the southwest corner 

of Hwy 75 and Belt Line Road from C-M Commercial to PD Planned Development (PD) to 

accommodate a drive-thru restaurant.  In addition, staff was recommending revocation of 

Ordinance 4063, the Special Permit recently approved for a Starbucks restaurant because the 

applicant was not able to obtain an access easement from the property owner to the west and there 

were still concerns regarding vehicle stacking and vehicles entering/leaving the site.   

 

Mr. Shacklett reported the new plan moves the proposed building from the southwest corner to the 

northwest corner, with a u-shaped drive-thru that would allow for nine vehicles to stack, moves the 

dumpster out of view to the southwest corner of the property, and screens the drive-thru from both 

Belt Line Road and Hwy 75 with a hedge row.  The materials proposed for the use in the previous 

building would remain the same with brick for the building itself and metal screens for screening 

and accents. 

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting one letter had been received in support, but 

request indoor seating, and asked the Commission to add the following items to the list of special 

conditions: 

 

9. Change in zoning from C-M Commercial to PD Planned Development District with a base 

zoning of C-M Commercial; 

10. Front setback shall be 20 feet for the building, drive-thru menu boards and signage along 

Belt Line Road and Hwy 75; and 

11. Revocation of Ordinance 4063. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the hedge row would surround the drive-thru. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied that special condition number 8 stated: “A minimum three (3) foot tall hedge 

row shall be planted within the landscape buffer along US-75 and Belt Line Road to provide 

screening of the drive-thru lane from both street frontages.”  

 

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Ms. Shannon del Valle, representing Starbucks Regional Office, 12750 Merit Drive, Suite 1400, 

Dallas, Texas, thanked staff for their help in redesigning the site plan and said she was available for 

questions. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if paving could be installed in front of the parking spaces on the south side 

of the building to allow customers to walk forward as opposed to walking behind cars. 

 

Ms. del Valle said that would not be a problem. 

 

With no other comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  11 
 

 

Commissioner Linn commented the design of the new site plan was much better than the previous 

submittal with improved traffic flow and a better location for the dumpster.  He also thought 

adding a sidewalk through the landscape to the crosswalk by the restaurant would be helpful. 

 

Ms. del Valle agreed and replied that it took input from their architect, the staff, and the landlord to 

come up with the current plan. 

 

Chairman Hand also complimented the applicant on the current design and said he would be voting 

in favor of the item. 

 

Commissioner Springs said he agreed the design was much better, but asked if the business would 

fit in with the long term redevelopment/enhancement studies currently taking place. 

 

Commissioner DePuy and Chairman Hand both stated the proposed development would be 

beneficial for the Heights Shopping Center and would not adversely affect redevelopment in the 

area. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked how the suggestions from Mr. Hand and Mr. Linn could be incorporated 

in a motion. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the motion could be “as presented” with the inclusion of special conditions 9, 

10 and 11, and the plan should be updated prior to going before the City Council.  He also 

proposed an additional special condition, number 12, to address the concerns of adding a sidewalk 

and suggested the following:  “A walkable path shall be added from the sidewalk along Hwy 75 

west along the north side of the parking spaces.” 

 

Motion: Vice Chair Bright made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-33 as 

presented with the addition of the special conditions 9, 10, 11 and 12; second by 

Commissioner Roland.   

 

Commissioner Linn commented that he was usually in favor of tabling items if they 

were connected to an ongoing redevelopment study area, but felt the applicant was 

taking an older gas station and repurposing it to a better use. 

 

Motion approved 7-0. 

 

11. Zoning File 14-35 – Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance Amendment (Temporary Open Air 

Markets):  Consider and take necessary action on a City-initiated request to amend the 

Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (Appendix A), Article I, Section 2 (Definitions), by adding the 

definition of Temporary Open Air Markets and by amending Article XXII-A, Section 2 (Special 

Permits – Use Regulations) to allow Temporary Open Air Markets upon approval of a Special 

Permit in the LR-M(1) and LR-M(2) Local Retail Districts, C-M Commercial District, and PD 

Planned Development. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  12 
 

 

Mr. Chavez stated that in the interest of protecting the public’s health and welfare, as well as 

providing formal guidance, the City Council directed staff to amend Chapter 12 of the Code of 

Ordinances to address the operation, food safety and signage for Temporary Open Air Markets 

(TOAM).  In addition, staff was directed to amend the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO) 

because the CZO did not list the TOAM as a specific use. 

 

Mr. Chavez stressed that the City Plan Commission and the City Council would still retain 

discretionary oversight to consider each request based on the appropriateness of the land use at any 

given location.   

 

Mr. Chavez said the proposed amendment included a definition for a TOAM, but would not apply 

to flea markets or other gatherings that were subject to a different section of Chapter 12.  He added 

the proposed item would also amend Article XXII-A – Special Permits to allow a TOAM, with 

approval of a Special Permit, in a LR-M(1 and 2) Local Retail, C-M Commercial, or portions of a 

PD that allows retail and commercial uses. 

 

Commissioner Springs asked if residents or others in the community had reviewed and commented 

on the proposed amendment. 

 

Mr. Chavez replied that the impetus behind the amendment was to deal with the safety aspect of 

the operation of a TOAM. 

 

Commissioner Linn asked if the current outdoor market at Campbell Road and Nantucket Drive 

was operating under a special event permit that expired before the end of the year. 

 

Mr. Chavez stated it was operating under a special event permit that expires at the end of the year 

and would fall under the new provisions if they chose to continue operations. 

 

Commissioner Ferrell asked if a TOAM could operate in a residential area. 

 

Mr. Chavez replied that a TOAM would not be allowed in residential areas. 

 

Commissioner DePuy asked if the Chapter 12 amendment contained a ratio for food to craft items, 

and would the Commission have the authority under the proposed amendment to make changes. 

 

Mr. Spicer stated the original draft ordinance had ratios, but those were removed and the proposed 

amendment would allow consideration on a case-by-case basis. 

 

With no further questions for staff, Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

No comments were received in favor or opposed and Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Chairman Hand acknowledged that the issue of TOAM had been an emotional issue for some 

residents, but appreciated that the City was putting guidelines in place and that each case would be 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  13 
 

 

decided on its own merits.  He also thought TOAM were a necessary tool in the revitalization of 

some of the City’s older neighborhoods. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Linn made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-35 as 

presented; second by Vice Chair Bright.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 

12. Zoning File 14 - 36 – Texas Instruments RFAB:  Consider and take necessary action on a 

request for a change in zoning from I-M(1) Industrial with special conditions to PD Planned 

Development to accommodate the development of non-masonry utility buildings.  The property is 

currently zoned I-M(1) Industrial and is located at 300 W. Renner Road; the northwest corner of 

Renner Road and Alma Road. 

 

Mr. Shacklett stated the applicant was requesting to rezone approximately 92.5 acres at the 

northwest corner of Renner Road and Alma Road to a PD to accommodate the development of 

non-masonry utilities buildings within the utility yard.   

 

Mr. Shacklett said low-voltage switch gears from inside the main building would be moved to 

enclosed, pre-engineered metal structures that would contain moveable property and personnel 

therefore classifying the structures as buildings and making them subject to the City’s masonry 

requirements.  However, the proposed Planned Development District (PD) would exempt the 

applicant from the masonry requirement, but limited the personnel in the building to perform only 

routine and infrequent maintenance activities (special condition number 7). 

 

Mr. Shacklett noted that in 2011 a variance was passed concerning the screening for the property 

with trees and metal fencing around the utility areas in-lieu-of a masonry wall and this screening 

would also shield the proposed non-masonry buildings.   

 

Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting no correspondence had been received and 

requested the Commission add a special condition under number 7 to read: (f) Allow the existing 

non-masonry buildings as shown on the current site plan. 

 

Commissioner Linn asked what material would be used, would the buildings comply with City 

regulations, and wanted confirmation the proposed buildings would be screened from public view. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the buildings could be a variety of metal panels or other non-masonry 

materials, and would be required to meet Building Code Standards. 

 

Regarding screening of the buildings, Mr. Shacklett presented photos of the area showing the 

existing berms and trees along Alma Road that would screen the area. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked if the apartments on the east side of Alma Road had been notified. 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the owner of the apartment property had been notified as well as the single-

family homes on the south side of Renner Road. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  14 
 

 

No other questions were posed to staff and Chairman Hand opened the public hearing. 

 

Mr. Eric Kuehmeier, Page Southerland Page Architects, 1800 Main Street, Dallas, Texas, said he 

wanted to reinforce the staff’s comments about the extent of the screening and how important it 

was to be a good neighbor to the surrounding properties.  He added that the proposed buildings 

would be very small in scale compared to the other buildings on the property and would blend in 

with the existing palette and style of the campus. 

 

Chairman Hand asked if there were expansion plans for the corner of Renner Road and Alma 

Road. 

 

Mr. Kuehmeier replied there is a 200-foot building setback in the area and that was intended as a 

buffer zone, but it could be considered for future parking. 

 

With no further comments in favor, Chairman Hand called for comments in opposition. 

 

Mr. Bob Reed, 401 W. President George Bush Highway, Suite 124, Richardson, Texas, said he 

wanted to know why the whole tract was being zoned light industrial and what the allowable uses 

in that zoning district were.  He also stated that the visibility of the plant was not only from Alma 

Road, but also from the highway and the back of his retail center. 

 

Mr. Reed pointed out that the allowable uses under light industrial would afford the applicant the 

opportunity to change many aspects of their property that were not being addressed by the current 

request.  He also noted that when he built his shopping center he was required to landscape the rear 

of the center and felt the same should be required of the applicant. 

 

Mr. Kueheimer replied that in the original development plan trees were planted as screening along 

the north property line next to the DART Light Rail Line. 

 

Mr. Shacklett added that as a requirement of the existing zoning all outdoor service and storage 

areas would be buffered from the view of the future DART Light Rail Line by use of berms, 

shrubs, trees, walls or any combination thereof. 

 

Regarding Mr. Reed’s question on zoning, Mr. Shacklett stated the current I-M Industrial zoning 

will remain, but the one change that was being proposed was to allow non-masonry buildings up to 

15 feet in height and no more than 1,000 square feet in the utility areas.  He added that Exhibit B 

was not intended to govern the whole site and verbiage was included prior to special condition 1 to 

that effect. 

 

With no other comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Hand closed the public hearing. 

 

Vice Chair Bright asked about a comment made in the study session regarding “grandfathering 

existing buildings” and wanted to know if that should be included in the motion. 

 



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes 

October 21, 2014 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2014/2014-10219 Minutes.doc  15 
 

 

Mr. Shacklett replied the motion should contain a statement including the previously mentioned 

special condition “7(f) Allow the existing non-masonry buildings as shown on the current site 

plan,” which would change the buildings to a legal conforming status. 

 

Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 14-36 

including the special conditions; second by Commissioner Ferrell.   

 

Commissioner Linn asked if the motion included special condition 7f. 

 

Commissioner Roland amended his motion to also include special condition 7(f) and 

Commissioner Ferrell gave the second.   

 

Motion approved 7-0. 

 

ADJOURN  

 

With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Hand adjourned the regular business 

meeting at 9:25 p.m. 

 

 

 

__________________________ 

Barry Hand, Chairman 

City Plan Commission 


